
SOUTHERN PINES APPEARANCE COMMISSION MINUTES 
Regular Meeting 
October 25, 2016 

 
 

Present: Carol Haney, Birtha Shaw, Teresa Lenahan, Jeff Kelly, Penelope Ham, Sean McCormick,          
and Ellen Slusher 
 

Staff Present: Debra Fisher, Jack Taylor, and Chris Kennedy 
 
Carol Haney asked if minutes had been read.  Teresa Lenahan made a motion to approve, Birtha Shaw 
seconded to approve the minutes from September 27, 2016. 
 
Landscape/Trees/Planters 
 
Tree Concerns/Update/Pots: Carol Haney commented that a large magnolia tree in the downtown park 
next to the Town Administration Building had split due to the Hurricane Matthew storm.  Jack Taylor 
stated that Mac’s Tree Service will be able to save the tree.  Teresa Lenahan stated we are going to 
decrease the number of planting pots on the sidewalk.  We had (31) planting pots and we are planning to 
reduce the amount down to a total of (22).  Teresa Lenahan commented she would like to work with the 
Southern Pines Business Association and the merchants prior to the spring season so that we can work 
together to have a similar color scheme.  Carol Haney suggested that Ms. Lenahan contact Suzanne 
Coleman with the Welcome Center so they are included in the effort of creating consistency for the 
planting pots and hanging baskets that they are planning to add to the Welcome Center at the Train 
Station.  Teresa Lenahan commented that we need to replace the planting pots downtown with a similar 
but smaller version of the planting pots we currently have at the train station; this could be included in 
the two (2) year plan.   Teresa Lenahan stated that the Appearance Commission tree walk has been 
rescheduled to November 15th at 8:00 A.M.  Chris Kennedy commented that he spoke with Ginny Trigg 
with the Pine Straw, and the Southern Pines Business Association would like someone from the Town to 
attend some of their meetings and functions.  Mr. Kennedy stated that he will try to attend some of their 
meetings but it may also be good for someone from the Appearance Commission to attend since the 
Appearance Commission is heavily involved with the downtown area. 
 
Tree Fund:  Carol Haney stated she would let everyone know to make their donations to the Town of 
Southern Pines stating that it is for the tree memorial and to give the check to Chris Kennedy at 180 SW 
Broad Street.   
 
General Appearance 
 
Adopt-A-Street:  Birtha Shaw stated that for the adopt-a-street program she has (17) groups listed, and 
suggested that each member pass registration forms out to neighbors, friends, and others. 
 
Building and Property Improvements:  Birtha Shaw stated she looked at the old Raffaele’s restaurant 
location on US-1 for contact information but the sale sign is gone.  Chris Kennedy commented that 
Crossroads Ford dealership has purchased the property and plans to tear down the existing structure and 
combine the land with the former Toby Wells dealership to create a new Ford dealership.  Mr. Kennedy 



stated that we have received complaints about the property located at the corner of S. Henley and Gaines, 
and we are beginning condemnation procedures on the house. 
 
Review new applications for Appearance Commission:  Carol Haney stated that she will invite the two 
(2) applicants to an Appearance Commission meeting. 
 
Christmas:  Penelope Ham stated that the wreaths and bows have been delivered, and will start going up 
on November 14th. 
 
Our Christmas tree:  Carol Haney stated that the Appearance Commission’s Christmas tree will be at the 
same location this year (in front of the Town Administration Building) and would like for the Appearance 
Commission to meet on December 1st to decorate the tree.   
 
Mayor’s Lighting Project:  Sean McCormick proposed that the mayor’s lighting project be renamed to the 
downtown lighting project.  Everyone was in agreement to project name change.  Sean McCormick stated 
that he spoke with a representative from Atlantic Irrigation and the representative recommended doing 
a demonstration for us with the up-lighting versus the down-lighting.  Mr. McCormick stated he thought 
it would be best to coordinate the demonstration after the time change in November or early December. 
 
New Business 
 
New Chair Pick:  Carol Haney stated she is now on the Town council and can no longer serve on the 
Appearance Commission, therefore a new chairperson of the Appearance Commission must be selected.  
Birtha Shaw stated that she was interested in becoming the chair if everyone was in agreement.  Carol 
Haney asked if everyone was in agreement to appoint Birtha Shaw as the new chair for the Appearance 
Commission, everyone was in agreement.  Birtha Shaw stated that they would need to choose a new vice 
president as well.  Teresa Lenahan stated that she was interested in becoming the new vice-chair.  Carol 
Haney asked if everyone was in agreement of appointing Teresa Lenahan as the new vice president for 
the Appearance Commission, everyone was in agreement.   
 
2 – 5 – 10 Year Plan Committee:  Chris Kennedy suggested that each member write down a handful of 
ideas for the 2-, 5- and 10-year plan of the Appearance Commission before the next meeting.  Jeff Kelly 
asked everyone to email their ideas to him and he will compile the results.  The results will be distributed 
by November 16th. 
 
Public Relations 
 
Updates:  Penelope Ham stated that there were no new updates. 
 
Adjournment Teresa Lenahan motioned and Birtha Shaw seconded. 
 
The next meeting will be at 1:00pm on November 22, 2016 
 
Submitted by: 
Debra Fisher 
Town of Southern Pines 


